Lincoln Industries Limited

(CIN: L51109WB1983PLC035957)
Registered Office: P — 36, India Exchange Place Extn., Kolkata - 700001
E-mail: sacmill@hotmail.com; Website: www.lincoln-industries.net
Telephone: (033) 2225-4573; Fax: (033) 2225-4850

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37" Annual General Meeting of Lincoln Industries Limited will
be held on Monday, the 21" day of December, 2020 at 3.00 p.m. IST through Video
Conferencing {“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial

year ended 31st March, 2020 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Praveen Chand Dhandhania (DIN: 00154048), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolutlon
relating to the appointment of the Auditors of the Company: ~

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 (2) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), M/s. Chhaparia &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No — 322169E), be and are hereby
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further period of five years so that to
hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting to be held in 2025 on a remuneration as may be determined by
the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation with the said Auditor.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
P-36, India Exchange Place Extn. For Lincoln Industries Limited
Kolkata - 700001 ' ‘

CIN: L51109WB1983PLC035957 LQ//
Website: www.lincoln-industries.net AN AAA :
E-mail: sacmill@hotmail.com : Praveen Chand Dhandhania
Telephone; (033) 2225-4573 ‘ Managing Director
Fax: (033) 2225-4850 (DIN: 00154048)

Dated: 11.11.2020



NOTES:

1. Explanatory Statement setting out material facts with respect to business at Iltem No. 3 in
terms of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed and constitutes part of this
Notice.

Additional information, pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with respect to appointment
of the Statutory Auditors of the Company, as proposed under Item No. 3 of this Notice, is
also provided in the Explanatory Statement.

2. Inview of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has
vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 read with General Circular No.
14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated 13th April, 2020
(collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars") permitted the holding of the Annual General
Meeting ("AGM") through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means
(“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations")
and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The
procedure for participating in the meeting through VC/ OAVM is explained at Note No. 28.
The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Regd. Offlce of the Company i.e. P —
36, India Exchange Place Extn., Kolkata - 700001.

3. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be
a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars
through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

5. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Directors seeking
appointment / re-appointment at this AGM, forms part of the Notice.

6. The attendance through VC/OAVM is restricted and hence will be made available to only
1000 Members on first come first served basis. However attendance of Members holding
2% or more of the shares of the Company, Institutional Investors as on closure of the
business hours on 14 day of November, 2020, Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, Scrutinizer, etc. are
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction of first come first served basis.
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Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of
the Company are requested to address their questions in writing to the Secretary of the
Company by Monday, 14" December, 2020.

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may
register themseives as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email
address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number
at sacmill@hotmail.com from 18" December, 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) to 20" December, 2020
(5:00 p.m. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be
allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the
right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.
In the interest of time, each speaker is requested to express his / her views in 2 — 3
minutes.

However, shareholders may post their comments/queries (not more than 150 characters)
in the chat box available on the Video Conferencing interface. Message posted by the
shareholders will be dealt with accordingly.

Corporate Members are required to send to the company a duly certified copy of the Board
Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their
representative to attend and vote at the AGM.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first
holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be
entitled to vote.

The Company’s shares are available in demat mode. The shares of the company can be
dematerialized under ISIN: INE911E01012. In terms of SEB! Circular, physical shares cannot
be transferred on or after 01.04.2019. Members are requested to dematerialize the shares
for operational convenience.

13. Voting through electronic means

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is offering e-
voting facility to its Members in respect of the businesses to be transacted at the Thirty-
seventh Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on Monday, 21* December, 2020 at
3.00 p.m. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (“CDSL”) to provide e-voting facilities. The e-voting particulars are set out below:

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVSN USER ID PERMANENT ACCOUNT NUMBER
(E-voting Sequence Number) (PAN)

201111003




The Instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on 18" December, 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) to 20" December,
2020 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 14 December, 2020 i.e. the cut-
off date, may cast their vote electronically. The e- voting module shall be disabled by
CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to
vote at the meeting venue.

(ili) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

{iv) Click on Shareholders.

{v}] Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company. ,

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com
and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be
used.

(viii)  If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

« Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two
letters of their name and the 8 digits of the folio number in the PAN field.
« In case the folio number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio
number 1 then enter RAO0O000001 in the PAN field.

boB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the
company records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy
format.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in

Bank the company records for the said demat account or folio.

Details

. Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the
details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the
number of shares in the Dividend Bank details field.

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.



{x)} Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in
the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to
vote, provided that company opts for e- voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care
to keep your password confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Lincoln Industries Limited> on which you choose to
vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NQO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL’ and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the Resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option

on the Voting page.

(xviii)  If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID
and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

(xix)  Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

a. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporates.

b. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the
entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

c. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

d. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able
to cast their vote.

e. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
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Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com,
under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc.
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are
authorized to vote through e-mailat  sacmill@hotmail.com or mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in or
aklabhcs@gmail.com with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on or
before 20" December, 2020 by 05:00 P.M. without which the vote shall not be treated
as valid.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, please contact the Company or
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents or send mail to sacmill@hotmail.com or
mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in. You may also send mail to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
refer to the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up
equity share capital of the Company held on the cut-off date of 14t December, 2020.

The member already cast his/her vote through remote e-voting would not be allowed to
cast vote again through e-voting at the AGM. However, he/she can attend the AGM.

Mr. A. K. Labh, Practicing Company Secretary ( FCS : 4848 ) of M/s. A. K. Labh & Co.,
Company Secretaries, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner, whose e-mail address is aklabhcs@gmail.com.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding 48 hrs from the conclusion of the e-
voting period, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the
employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour
or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The Results declared
along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.lincoln-
industries.net and on the website of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions
at the AGM of the Company. On receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall
be deemed to have been passed on the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediately change of
address, transfer, demat, ECS credit request, if any, to the Registrars and Transfer Agents
of the Company i.e. M/s Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. at 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road,
5% Floor, Kolkata - 700 001. Tel No.: (033) 2243 5809 / 5029; 2248 2248; Fax No.: (033)
2248 4787; e-mail: mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in or mdpldc@yahoo.com or skchaubey@mdpl.in.
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Members may also note that the Notice of the 37" AGM and the Annual Report 2019-20
will be available on the Company’s website, www.lincoln-industries.net.

Members holding shares in demat mode are requested to notify any change in address,
Bank Details, ECS Credit request to their respective depository participants and make
sure that such changes are recorded by them.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from Tuesday, 15t December, 2020 to Monday, 21" December, 2020 (both days
inclusive). Duly executed and stamped transfer deeds, along with the relative Share
Certificates, should be submitted to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
before the closure of the Register of Members for registration of transfers.

Queries on accounts, if any, should be mailed to sacmill@hotmail.com at least seven
days before the meeting.

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market transaction
and off-market/private transaction including, transfer of shares held in physical form,
deletion of name of the deceased shareholder(s), where the shares are held in the name
of two or more shareholders, transmission of shares to the legal heir(s), where deceased
shareholder was the sole holder of shares and transposition of shares - when there is a
change in the order of names in which physical shares are held jointly in the names of
two or more shareholders.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this
Notice.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC / OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

i. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM
through the CDSL e-voting system. Members may access the same at
www.evotingindia.com under Members login by using the remote e- voting
credentials. The link for VC / OAVM will be available in Members login where the EVSN
of Company will be displayed. Please note that the Members who do not have the
User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may
retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the
Notice. Further Members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the e-
voting system of CDSL.

ii. Members can participate in the AGM through smart phone/laptop. However, for
better experience and smooth participation it is advisable to join the Meeting using
Google Chrome, through Laptops connected through broadband. Further Members
will be required to use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting. Participating Members are requested to keep their device under ‘Mute’



mode, except for pre-registered speakers, when invited to speak at the Meeting.

iii. Participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

iv. The Members who are shareholders as on closure of the business hours on 14"
November, 2020 are requested to join the AGM through VC/OAVM mode, 30 minutes
before the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting and not later than
15 minutes after the commencement of the meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice.

v. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact CDSL on
evoting@cdsl.co.in or use Toll Free No0.1800-222-990

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE ORDINAY BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH REGULATION 30 OF SEBI (LODR)
REGULATIONS, 2015

Item No.3

The Company is proposing for appointment of statutory auditors of the company for the
approval of the shareholders. Information required pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 is mentioned hereunder:

Reason for appointment: M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm
Registration No — 322169E), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company till the
conclusion of this AGM as approved by the shareholders at Extra-ordinary General Meeting
held on 12.12.2019.

Terms of appointment: M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm
Registration No — 322169E), are being proposed to be appointed as statutory auditors of the
Company in terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, for a period of 5 (five) years from the
conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of 42" AGM of the Company to be held in 2025.




Basis_of recommendation for appointment: Before recommending the appointment of M/s.
Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No — 322169E), as the
statutory auditors, the Audit Committee considered various parameters like audit experience in
the Company’s operating segments, market standing of the firm, clientele served, etc., and
found M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No — 322169E),
to be best suited to handle the scale, diversity and complexity associated with the audit of the
financial statements of the Company.

Details and credentials of auditors: M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm
Registration No — 322169E), was established in 01.04.2002. The Firm has qualified and
experienced professionals who are expert in handling audits of various scale, diversifications
and complexities. The Firm has reputed clientele base across the country.

Proposed Fee: As mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the
new auditors, M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No -
322169E), subject to revisions in between as decided in due course.

Last fee to the auditor: The Company had paid a professional fee of Rs. 60,000/- to the
Statutory Auditors i.e. M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration
No — 322169E), with respect to statutory audit for the financial year 2019-20.

Any material change and rationale for such change: The proposed fees payable to M/s.
Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No — 322169E), is based on
the fee proposal received at the time of selection of the Statutory Auditors by the Audit
Committee in line with the Company’s scale of operations and at par with the industrial norms.

M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No — 322169E), have
given their consent to act as the Auditors of the Company and have confirmed that the said
appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the conditions prescribed under Sections 139
and 141 of the Act. ‘

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution. This statement may
also be regarded as an appropriate disclosure under the Listing Regulations.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 3 for your
approval.



Details of Directors seeking appointment/reappointment at the Annual General Meeting
pursuant to Regulation 26{4) and 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General

Meeting (SS-2) as amended.

Name of the Director

Mr. Praveen Chand Dhandhania

Category Managing Director
DIN 00154048
Date of Birth 29.04.1974
Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment 21.07.2003
Qualifications B.com

Experience and Expertise

More than 22 years of experience in Business and
Finance management

Company

Number of Meetings of the Board 7
attended during the year

List of Directorships :

Listed Companies -
Other Companies 1
List of Membership/Chairmanship of Nil
Committees of other Board

Number of shares held by him in the 19550

Relationship with any Director(s) and

KMPs of the Company

Spouse of Mrs. Rinku Dhandhania, Director

Registered Office:
P-36, India Exchange Place Extn.
Kolkata - 700001

CIN: L51109WB1983PLC035957
Website: www.lincoln-industries.net

E-mail: sacmill@hotmail.com
Telephone: (033) 2225-4573
Fax: (033) 2225-4850

Dated: 11.11.2020

By Order of the Board
Forpincoln Industries Limited

o

Praveen Chand Dhandhania

Managing Director
(DIN: 00154048)



Lincoln Industries Limited

(CIN: L51109WB1983PLC035957) :
Registered Office: P — 36, India Exchange Place Extn., Kolkata - 700001
E-mail: sacmill@hotmail.com; Website: www.lincoln-industries.net
Telephone: (033) 2225-4573; Fax: (033) 2225-4850

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors hereby present the 37" Annual Report and Audited financial statement of the Company
for the year ended 31* March, 2020.

Financial Performance:

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31 March, 2020 is summarized below:

Amount in Rs.

Financial Result Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Total Revenue 16,50,91,005 25,86,19,190
Profit /(Loss) Before Tax (12,42,267) (24,89,154)
Profit /(Loss) After Tax © 36,62,931 (8,36,686)
EPS 0.70 (0.16)

Financial Performance

During the financial year under review, total revenue decreased from Res. 25,86,19,190/- to Rs.
16,50,91,005/- .Your Company reported a profit of Rs.36,62,931/-vis-a-vis loss of Rs. Rs. 8,36,686/-in the
previous year.

In view of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, Company’s Offices has been closed as per lockdown
directives issued by the Government since the last week of March, 2020 and normal operations has
resumed gradually in a phased manner with restrictive attendance and proper sanitization with due
permission of the local district authorities as applicable and in accordance with the guidelines stipulated
by the Ministry of Home Affairs of the Government of India and the local authorities. In developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions due to the
pandemic, the Company, as at the date of the approval of these financial statements has used both
internal and external sources of information. However, given the effect of this lockdown on the overall
economic activity and in particular, on this industry, the impact assessment of COVID-19 on these
financial statements is subject to significant estimation of uncertainties given its nature and duration.
Accordingly, the actual impacts in future may be different from those estimated at the date of approval
of these financial statements.

Dividend

The Board of Directors regrets their inability to recommend any dividend for the financial year under
report.



Change in the nature of business, if any

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the reguiators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future

There were no significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company's operations in future.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurring between March 31, 2020 and the date of this Report of the Directors.

Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associates
The Company has no subsidiary / joint venture / associate as on 31.03.2020.
Share Capital

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2020 was Rs. 5,24,50,000. During the year under
review, the Company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments.

Internal Financial Control

The Company has in place an established internal control system designed to ensure propef recording of
financial and operational information and compliance of various internal controls and other regulatory
and statutory compliances. Code on Internal Control which require that the Directors review the
effectiveness of internal controls and compliance controls, financial and operational risks, risk
assessment and management systems and related party transactions, have been complied with.

Risk Management

The Board members were informed about risk assessment and minimization proceddres after which the
Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management plan for
the company.

Board of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Praveen Chand Dhandhania (DIN:
00154048), Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Key Managerial Personnel

The Company had the following persons as KMP as on 31.03.2020:

a) Mr. Praveen Chand Dhandhania — Managing Director
b) Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhageria — Chief Financial Officer
¢) Mr. Nitin Gupta - Company Secretary



Meetings of Board and Committees:

Board Meetings

During the financial year 2019-2020, the Board met 7 times on 30.05.2019, 25.06.2019, 05.07.2019,
14.08.2019, 16.10.2019, 14.11.2019 and 14.02.2020.

Audit Committee Meetings

During the financial year 2019-2020 the Committee met 4 times on 30.05.2019, 14.08.2019, 14.11.2019
and 14.02.2020.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the financial year 2019-2020, the Committee met once on 14.08.2019.
Stakeholders Relationship Committee
During the financial year 2019-2020, the Committee met once on 30.03.2020

Board Evaluation

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee laid down the policy and process of evaluation of Board of
Directors. Under this policy a set of parameters to be used in the evaluation process has been
determined for:

i Self evaluation of the Board Members

ii. Evaluation of Non- independent Directors’ performance by Independent Directors.
iii. Evaluation of Chairman’s performance by Independent Directors.

iv. Assessment of quantity, quality and timeliness of information to the Board

Using the parameters mentioned above and in accordance with Guidance Note on Board Evaluation
issued by SEBI dated 05.01.2017, the evaluation of the Board Members was carried out.

Meeting of Independent Directors

A separate meeting of Indepe‘nderit Directors was held on 31.12.2019 to evaluate performance of the
Chairman of the Board, the Directors and the Board as a whole.

Declaration by Independent Directors and Board and Confirmation by the Board

All Independent Directors of your Company have given declarations that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board also hereby
confirms that in its opinion the Independent Directors of the company. fulfill the conditions / criteria
specified under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEB! (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended, and also are
independent of the management. The Independent Directors have also registered themselves in the
databank with the Institute of Corporate Affairs of India as per Rule 6(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014.



Remuneration Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the Nomination, Remuneration and
Evaluation Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel {(KMPs) and other employees in terms of the
provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The said policy which has been approved by
the Board outlines the appointment criteria and qualifications, the term/ tenure of the Directors on the
Board of Company and the matters related to remuneration of the Directors.

The Company's Remuneration Policy is available on the Company's website: www.lincoln-industries.net
and is attached as Annexure -1 and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

Audit Committee

The composition of the Audit Committee as on 31* March, 2020 is as follows:
1. Mr. Sushil Kumar Sureka - Chairman

2. Mr. Sushovan Saharoy

3. Mr. Praveen Chand Dhandhania

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on 31* March, 2020 is as follows:

1. Mr. Sushil Kumar Sureka - Chairman
2. Mr. Sushovan Saharoy
3. Mrs. Rinku Dhandhania

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The composition of the Stakeholders relationship committee as on 31* March, 2020 is as follows:
1. Mr. Sushil Kumar Sureka - Chairman

2. Mr. Sushovan Saharoy

3. Mr. Praveen Chand Dhandhania

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has in place a vigil mechanism details of which are available on the Company's website
www.lincoln-industries.net

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Party

The Company follows a policy of disclosure of Related Party Transactions in each Meeting of the Audit
Committee and also of the Board of Directors. The details of Related Party Transactions are enclosed as
Annexure -2,

Loans, guarantees and investments

The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.
The particulars of loans and advances given and investments made in securities under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been provided in the financial statements of the Company.



Disclosure under Section 197 {12) and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as
amended, regarding employees is given in Annexure-3 forming part of the Directors’ Report.

Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Proviso under Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Annual Return is available
on the Company's website at www.lincoln-industries.net and may be accessed through the web-link:
www lincoln-industries.net/download/annualreports/annualreturn-2019-20.pdf

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The prescribed particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo required under section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure — 4 and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors of your
Company confirm that -:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
(ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that period; ‘

{iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

{v) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

(vi) there is a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Cost Audit & Cost Record

The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to Cost Audit and maintenance of Cost records does
not apply on your Company.

Fraud

There were no cases of any fraud as reported during the year.



Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, and as such, there are no outstanding
deposits in terms of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR

The provisions of Sections 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility is
not applicable to the Company.

Listing

The Equity Shares of the Company continues to be listed with Calcutta and Delhi Stock Exchange. Since,
Delhi Stock Exchange has been derecognized by SEBI, henceforth the Company is listed only on the
Calcutta Stock Exchange. The Company has made an application for delisting of shares from Calcutta

Stock Exchange and the same is under process.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is not applicable to the company in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Auditors and Auditors Qualifications

M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No —322169E), were appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company till the - -conclusion of the ensuing AGM as approved by the
shareholders at Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 12.12.2019.

The Board of Directors proposes to appoint M/s. Chhaparia & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
(Firm Registration No — 322169E), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting to hold office from the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 42" Annual General Meeting. The proposed
Auditors have given their consent together with a certificate that the appointment, if made, shall be in
accordance with the conditions specified in Rule 4 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The observations made in the Auditor's Report, have been suitably explained in the Notes on Financial
Statement which are self- explanatory.

Secretarial Audit & Observations:

Secretarial Audit was conducted during the year by Mr. Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company Secretary
(ACS-32891, CP No.- 14664) in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013, The Secretarial Auditor's Report is attached as Annexure ~ 5 and forms a part of this Report of the
Directors and does not contain any observation / adverse remark.



internal Audit & Controls

In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, M/s VKC & Co., Kolkata was the Internal Auditor for the Company during the financial year.

Internal Auditors’ findings are discussed and suitable corrective actions are taken as per the directions of
Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013

There were no cases/ complaints reported under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act during the financial year under review.

Secretarial Standards

The Board of Directors hereby affirms that your Company has adhered to the Secretarial Standards as
prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India during the financial year under report.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of assistance and co-operation received from
bankers, lenders, suppliers, customers, Government authorities, employees & other stake holders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata For Lincoln Industries Limited
Date: 11.11.2020 :
- oo
@/;&’V‘A ¢ =
Praveen Chand Dhandhania Sushil Kumar Sureka
Managing Director Director

(Din: 00154048) (Din: 00154068)



ANNEXURE- 1

Remuneration Policy of
LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

LIL’s remuneration strategy is aimed at attracting and retaining high standard of relevant
talent. The Remuneration Policy, therefore, is market-led and takes into account the
competitive circumstance of each business situation of the Company so as to attract and
retain high quality talent fulfilling the requisite qualification and leverage performance
significantly.

PREAMBLE

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, the Board of Directors of every listed Company shall constitute the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. In order to align with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the amended Listing Agreement from time to time, the Board
on 31st July, 2014 changed the nomenclature of the “Remuneration Committee” as
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” and reconstituted the Committee with two
non-executive Independent Directors and one executive Director as Member of the
Committee

Remuneration of Manager, Directors, Company Secretary, CFO Etc.

Remuneration of Manager under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Manager’) and the Executive
Directors, if any, the Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and immediately
one level below Senior Employees of the Company is determined by the Board of Directors
(‘Board’) of the Company within the broad Policy formulated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprising only Non-Executive Directors and in conformity with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and also subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in their General Meeting. The aforesaid personnel are entitled to performance
bonus for each financial year up to such an amount as may be determined by the Board. Such
remuneration is linked to short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company and its goals as well as the group to which the Company belongs to
as well as on the concerned employee’s qualification and the grade and the overall
performance of such employee of the Company as a whole.

Commission of the Non-Executive and the Independent Directors of the Company is
~ determined by the Board based, inter alia, on Company performance and the prevailing
regulatory provisions and is payable on a uniform basis to reinforce the principle of collective
responsibility. Non-Executive Directors and the Independent Directors are also entitled to
sitting fees for attending Meetings of the Board and Committees thereof, the quantum of
which is determined by the Board within the limits as laid down in the Articles of Association
of the Company. The sitting fees shall be determined by the Board for attending each meeting
of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
‘Relationship Committee.  The Non-Executive and the Independent Directors may be
reimbursed out of pocket expenses for attending Board and Committee Meetings of the
Company at a city other than the one in which they reside.



Service Contracts, Severance Fee and Notice Period:

The appointment of the Manager, the Executive Directors, if any, the Company Secretary,
CFO and immediately one level below Senior Employees of the Company is governed by
resolutions passed by the Board and the Shareholders of the Company, which cover the terms
and conditions of such appointment read with the service rules of the Company. A separate
Service Contract is not entered into by the Company with those elevated to the Board from
the management cadre, since they already have a Service Contract with the Company. There
is no separate provision for payment of severance fee under the resolutions governing the
appointment of Manager and Executive Directors, if any, who have all been drawn from
amongst the management cadre. The prevailing statutory provisions will however, apply. As
per his terms of appointment, a notice of three month’s is required to be given by the
concerned employee ,as the case may be, seeking to vacate office and such resignation takes
effect upon the expiration of such notice or its earlier acceptance by the Board.




ANNEXURE - 2
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Mr. Praveen Chand
Dhandhania, Managing Director

{b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Director’s Remuneration

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — 01.04.2019 - 31.03.2020

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 0.60 lakhs

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Mr. Nitin Gupta-Company
Secretary
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Remuneration
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — 01.04.2019 — 31.03.2020
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 1.08 lakhs
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Mr. Shyam Sundar Bhageria -
CFO

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Remuneration

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — 01.04.2019 - 31.03.2020

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 4.50 lakhs ‘

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) .of the related party and nature of relationship — Mr. Praveenchand
Dhandhania, Managing Director

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions -Rent

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — 01.04.2019-30.03.2020

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 0.60 lakhs

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil




a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — P & P Highrise Pvt. Ltd.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Rent

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — 01.04.2019-31.03.2020

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 0.60 lakhs

(e) Date(s) of approvai by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Prem Chand Dhandhania
(HUF)
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Rent
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions —01.04.2019-31.03.2020
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 0.24 lakhs
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:
(f} Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Original Commotrade LLP
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Interest income
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — 01.04.2019-31.03.2020
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 4.10 lakhs
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills
& Industries Ltd. ‘

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Interest income
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions —01.04.2019-31.03.2020
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 17.15 lakhs ,
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Original Commotrade LLP

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Share of Profit from LLP firm

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions —01.04.2019-31.03.2020

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs. 36.41lakhs

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Pragati Dealmark LLP

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Share of Profit from LLP firm

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions —01.04.2019-31.03.2020

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs.(21.62) lakhs ‘

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil




a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Original Commotrade LLP

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Loans and advances given

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions —01.04.2019-31.03.2020

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs.56.00 iakhs

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:
{f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills &
Industries Ltd.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Loans and advances given
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions —01.04.2019-31.03.2020

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs.254.00 lakhs

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Original Commotrade LLP
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Receipt of Loans and advances
given o

(c) Duration of the contracts / arran‘gements/transactions — 01.04.2019-31.03.2020(d)
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs.329.38 lakhs
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

a ) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills
& Industries Ltd.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Receipt of Loans and advances
given

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — 01.04.2019-31.03.2020
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: Rs.35.75 lakhs
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

Place: Kolkata
Date: 11.11.2020

Praveen Chand Dhandhania
Managing Director
(Din: 00154048)
e 1,\,; Lo,
.

- e

Sushil Kumar Sureka
Director
(Din: 00154068)



ANNEXURE ~3

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

Name of the Director / CEO | Designation {i) (ii)

/ CFO / Company Secretary _ ) .

/ Manager Ratio of the remuneration of | Percentage increase
each director to the median | in Remuneration
remuneration of the | during 2019-20
employees of the Company for
the financial year 2019-20

Mr. Praveenchand Managing 0.5:1 Nil

Dhandhania Director

Ms. Rinku Dhnadhania Director - -

Mr. Sushil Kumar Sureka Director - -

Mr. Sushovan Saharoy Director - -

Mr. Shyam Sunder CFO 3.8:1 50%

Bhageria

Mr. Nitin Gupta CS 0.9:1 Nil

SI. No. | Description Remarks

iil. the percentage increase in the median | 31.95%
remuneration of employees in the financial year;

iv. the number of permanent employees on the rolls of | 16
company;

V. average percentile increase already made in the | Average Salary increase of non-
salaries of employees other than the managerial | managerial employees is 84.80%
personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof Average  Salary increase  of
and point out if there are any exceptional managerial employees is 63.49%
circumstances for .increase in ‘the  managerial
remuneration;

vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration to managerial personnel referred to above is

as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE —4

information pursuant to clause {m) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’
Report for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

A)

B)

)

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Energy conservation measures taken and impact of the measures:

Energy optimization schemes and pollution control measures have been fully
incorporated in the design and engineering of the plant. The company continues to
lay a great deal of emphasis on conservation of energy.

Steps taken for utilisation of alternate sources of energy:

The company continues to lay a great deal of emphasis on conservation of energy
and utilization of alternate sources of energy.

Capital Investment on energy conservation equipments:

The company maintained satisfactory and acceptable pollution control measures
and environmental management system during the year.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

The efforts made towards technology absorption:

The company has an in-house Research and Development Department which always
keeps on adopting latest development in improving quality and productivity thereby
making the products most cost effective.

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution:

The company has always been aware of the latest technological development and
has adopted them to attain high levels of quality at lowest cost of production.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year): NIL

Expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development was commensurate with
the scale of operation of the Company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

There was no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year under review.



ANNEXURE- 5

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

Lincoln Industries Limited

P — 36, India Exchange Place Extn.
2" Floor, Kolkata - 700 001

West Bengal

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Lincoln Industries
Limited, P-36, India Exchange Place Extn., 2" Floor, Kolkata — 700001; West Bengal
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct
of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended 31.03.2020 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the‘extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.



Auditors’ Responsibility

Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on existence of adequate Board
process and compliance management system, commensurate to the size of the
Company, based on these secretarial records as shown to me during the said audit
and also based on the information furnished to me by the officers’ and the agents of
the Company during the said audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to the best of
my understanding to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and
practices, | followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness, appropriateness and bases of financial records,
books of accounts and decisions taken by the Board and by various committees of
the Company during the period under scrutiny. | have checked the Board process and
compliance management system to understand and to form an opinion as to whether
there is an adequate system of seeking approval of respective committees of the
Board, of the Board, of the members of the Company and of other authorities as per
the provisions of various statutes as mentioned hereinafter.

Wherever required | have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of the laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

| have relied upon the accuracy of the documents and information as shared by the
Company with me through appropriate Information Technology tools to assist me in
completing the secretarial audit work during lock down period due to unprecedented
situation prevailing in the Country due to CoVID-19 virus pandemic and the same is
subject to physical verification by me post normalization of the situation.



The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations and standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination

was limited to the verification of compliance procedures on test basis.

My report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness or accuracy with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

I report that, | have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended
31.03.2020 according to the provisions of (as amended):

(i)
(ii)

(iiff)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a)

(c)

(d)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
Secretarial Standards as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries
of India;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there
under;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
there under;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation
made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulation, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligétions and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.



i further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has generally complied with the provisions
of the laws to the extent of their applicability to the Company during the financial
year ended 31.03.2020 and my examination and reporting is based on the
documents, records and files as produced and shown to me and the information and
explanations as provided to me by the Company and its management and to the best
of my judgment and understanding of the applicability of the different enactments
upon the Company.

Further, to the best of my knowledge and understanding there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with its size and operation to monitor
and ensure compliances with applicable laws.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

During the period under review, provisions of the following
regulations/guidelines/standards were not applicable to the Company:

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; :

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt

Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009;
(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018.
| further report that :
(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance

of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place



during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act. '

(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

(c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if
any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

(d) There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that:

(a) In view of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, Company’s Offices have been
closed as per lockdown directives issued by the Government since the last
week of March, 2020 and normal operations has resumed gradually in a
phased manner with restrictive attendance and proper sanitization with due
permission of the local district authorities as applicable and in accordance with
the guidelines stipulated by the Ministry of Home Affairs of the Government of
India and the local authorities.

Sd/-
(Asit Kumar Labh) Place: Kolkata
Practicing Company Secretary Dated: 11.11.2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

To
The Members of
Lincoln Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Lincoln Industries Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
on that date, the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and Notes to the Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, its Profit for the year ended on that date and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit
matters to communicate in our report.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including the Annexures to the Board’s Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

o
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report such fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give, in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

M
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of accounts;

d. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 except non-provision of Employees Benefits in terms of Accounting
Standard-15, the amount of which cannot be ascertained;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31t March,
2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we attach herewith a report on the same
in Annexure B

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
statements;

ii., The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chhaparia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 322169E

}a&ﬂw \@)‘; d
W ‘ (Sybhash Kumar Baid)

Partner
Membership No. 064917
UDIN: 20064917AAAACT7271

Place :Kolkata
Dated : The 31¢ day of July, 2020.
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LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

i.  Inrespectof its fixed assets:

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As per information and explanations given to us, a substantial portion of fixed assets were
physically verified by the management during the year and in our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) As per information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of the Immovable Properties are
held in the name of the company.

ii. Inrespectof its inventories :

(@) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the procedures of
verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to
the size of the Company and nature of its business.

(c) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification
between the physical stock and the book records were not material and have been properly dealt
with in the accounts.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us with regard to loans, secured or

unsecured, granted by the Company to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other

parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, we report
as follows:

(a) The Company has granted loan to one Company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the terms and conditions of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.

(b) Inrespect of the loan covered under the register maintained under section 189 of the Act, the

schedule of repayment of the principal and payment of Interest amount has been stipulated
and payment of interest and principal are regular.

o
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(¢) In our opinion and according to the information given to us there are no amounts of loans
granted to companies, firms, LLPs or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act which are outstanding for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
granting of loans and making any investment. The Company has not providing any guarantees and
giving securities.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the provisions
of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. Hence clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act.
Hence, clause 3(vi) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

(@  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company has
been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax, goods
and service tax, cess and any other material statutory dues as applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us, there were
no undisputed dues payable in respect of the above as at the end of the year for a period
exceeding six months from the date they became due for payment.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company,
there are no amounts due, in respect of income tax or cess etc, which have not been deposited
by the Company on account of any dispute as on 31t March, 2020 except for the following,

Name of the Nature of the | Period to which | Forum where dispute | Amount under
Statutes Dues the anount is pending dispute, not yet
relates deposited(?)

Income Tax Income Tax | A.Y.2010-11 CIT Appeal, Kolkata 6,135,250/ -
Laws (Income
Tax)

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings to any
financial institutions, banks or Government.

The company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer or further

public offer but has taken term loans and it has been applied for the purpose for which term loan
was taken. ‘

"
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To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employee has been
noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion, since the Company is a private limited company, the provisions of section 197 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, clause 3(xi) of the said Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The company is not a Nidhi company. Hence, clause 3(xii) is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
entered into by the Company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by
the Accounting Standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence, clause 3(xiv) of the said Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him/her. Hence,
clause 3(xv) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Cbmpany is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, clause
3(xvi) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Chhaparia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 322169E

Wmﬂ(u}*@“‘ d

G\*/ (Subhash Kumar Baid)
Partner

Membership No. 064917
UDIN: 20064917AAAACT7271

: Kolkata

Dated : The 31+t day of July, 2020.
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LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED
ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lincoln Industries Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

! Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

s
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31t March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Fmanmal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Chhaparia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
RN : 322169E

pw&ﬁw%d d

! G\A/ (Subhash Kumar Baid)
‘ Partner

Membership No. 064917
UDIN: 20064917AAAACT7271

Place :Kolkata
Dated : The 315t day of July, 2020.
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LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Amount in ¥
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020
Particulars Note No. As at 31st March As at 31st March
: 2020 2019
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 1 13,166,280 15,829,984
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2 37,973,297 44,115,818
(ii) Trade Receivable - 1,068,911
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 2,550,084 .
{d) Other Non Current Assets 4 4,205,655 3,773,676
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 5 504,521 516,028
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivable 6 3,796,280 781,713
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 608,072 458,478
(iit) Loans 8 23,368,684 26,969,235
(iv) Other Financial Assets 9 12,659,363 11,103,526
(¢} Other Current Assets 10 564,975 2,445,656
TOTAL ASSETS 99,397,212 107,064,025
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 52,450,000 52,450,000
(b) Other equity 12 44,470,831 44,923,675
Liabilities
Noo-Current Liabilities
(a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 3 - 3,739,359
{(b) Other Non-Current Liabilities 13 - 42,600
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 1,168,810 5,233,238
(1i) Other Financial Liabilities 15 120,002 34,436
(b) Other Current Liabilities 16 1,187,570 640,717
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 99,397,212 107,064,025
Significant Accounting Policies
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1to 39

In terms of our report of even date annexed

For Chhaparia & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 322169!@(‘ \
WOROMEAS ~ d MWMMAA-F €y e it

{(Pubhash Kumar Baid) W Chief Financial Officer Director
Partner Shyam Sunder Bhageria : Sushi! Kumar Sureka
Membership No. 064917 Pan: AGDPB2968B m DIN: 00154068
Place : Kolkata ‘Q\vcy {
Dated : The 31st day of July, 2020 W v
Company Secretary Director
Nitin Gupta Praveen Chand Dhandhania
Pan: AQNPG8747P DIN: 00154048




LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars Note No. 2019-2020 2018-2019
I Income
Revenue from Operations 17 155,922,056 251,129,107
Other Income 18 9,168,949 7,490,083
Total Income (I) 165,091,005 258,619,190
I Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 19 144,856,764 213,432,466
Purchase of stock-in-trade 20 - 19,858,093
glkg]ges in inventories of finished goods and Stock-in- 21 . 6,779,112
e
Employee Benefits Expense 22 6,094,800 5,818,298
Finance Costs 23 330,488 880,840
Depreciation Expense 1 2,006,248 2,467,762
Other Expenses 24 13,044,973 11,871,773
Total Expenses (1) 166,333,272 261,108,344
111 Profit/(Joss) before Exceptional items & tax (I-IT) (1,242,267) (2,489,154)
1V Add : Exceptional ltem - -
YV Profit/(loss) before tax (I1I-1V) (1,242,267) (2,489,154)
VI Tax Expense :
Current Tax - -
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement - -
Deferred Tax (4,905,198) (1,652,468)
Earlier Years - -
Net Tax Expense (4,905,198) (1,652,468)
VII Profit/(loss) for the Year (V-VI) 3,662,931 (836,686)
VI Other Comprehensive Income
A, ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
(2) Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income-net (5,500,021} 2,263,926
change in fair value
(b) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 1,384,245 3,484,268
Profit & Loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income (4,115,776) 5,748,194
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+VIII) (452,844) 4,911,508
X Paid-up equity share capital (Face Value of 310 each) 5,245,000 5,245,000
XI Reserves/other equity (other than revaluation reserve) - .
X{I Earnings Per Equity Share (F. V. of T 10/- each) : 25
Basic 0.70 (0.16)
Diluted 0.70 (0.16)
Significant Accounting Policies
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 11039

Interis of our report of even date annexed
For Chhaparia & Associates

artered Accountants

FRN: 322!69? ‘d
WMIW-

(Bubhash Kumar Baid)
Partner
Membership No. 064917

W

Place : Kolkata
Dated : The 31st day of July, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board

Chief Financial Officer
Shyam Sunder Bhageria
Pan: AGDPB2968B
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Company Secretary

Nitin Gupta

Pan: AQNPG8747P
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Director

Sushil Kumar Sureka
DIN: 00154068

Praveen Chand Dhandhania
DIN: 00154048



LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

. Equity Share Surplus in the
Particulars qCapital Revenue Reserve Statenfent of Profit Total
and Loss
Balance at April §, 2018 524,50,000 60,93,605 339,18,562 924,62,167
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - 49,11,508 49,11,508
Balance at March 31, 2019 524,50,000 60,93,605 388,30,070 973,73,675
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (4,52,844) (4,52,844)
Batance at March 31, 2020 524,50,000 60,93,605 383,77,226 969,20,831

Significant Accounting Policies

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date annexed
For Chhaparia & Associates

, For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
RN: 3221692
hoafa sk
(Subhash Kumar Baid)

Partuer
Membership No. 064917

Place : Kolkata
Dated : The 31st day of July, 2020

Chief Financial Officer
Shyam Sunder Bhageria

W

Pan: AGDPB2968B

L (e £t

Director

Sushil Kumar Sureka
DIN: 00154068
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v | QA
Company Secretary Director
Nitin Gupta Praveen Chand Dhandhania

Pan: AQNPG8747P
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LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year

3y

Amount in T

Particulars 2019-202¢ 2018-2019
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (1,242,267 (2,489,154)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation Expense 2,006,248 2,467,762
Finance Costs 330,488 880,840
Loss on Sale of Investment 38,058 100,000
Interest Income (2,477,770) (1,873,054)
Interest on Income Tax Return (46,943) -
Profit from Sale of Fixed Assets {4,960,328)
Profit from Partnership Firm (1,479,317) (5,617,029)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (7,831,831) (6,530,635)
Movements in Working Capital :
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 11,507 14,682,265
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (1,944,656) 11,670,716
(Increase) / Decrease in Advances & Other Receivables 1,772,103 (5,429,940)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 589,818 45,402
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable - (1,408,941)
Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations (7,403,059) 13,028,867
Direct Taxes Paid (net of refunds) (391,036) -
Net Cash flow from / (used in) Operating Activities (7,794,095) 13,028,867
. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Share of Reserve in LLP - 5,465,794
Sale of Fixed Assets 5,617,784 .
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment 642,500 -
(Increase) / Decrease in Loan 3,600,551 -
Interest Income 2,477,770 1,873,054
Net Cash from / (used in) Investing Activities 12,338,605 7,338,848
, Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Finance Cost (330,488) (880,840)
Increase / (Decrease) in Short-Term Borrowings (4,064,428) (19,821,271)
Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities (4,394,916) (20,702,111)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 149,594 (334,396}
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year 458,478 792,874

y

Significant Accounting Policies
| Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date annexed
For Chhaparia & Associates
Chayptered Accountants
i 322169E

mm:w&i d

» For and on behalf of the Board

[P Y S

Chief Financial Officer Director
(SyYbhash Kumar Baid) W Shyam Sunder Bhageria Sushil Kumar Sureka
Partner Pan; AGDPB2968B DIN: 00154068
Membership No, 064917
o

Place : Kolkata \S‘ A OAAL \—-——7

Dated : The 31st day of July, 2020 Company Secretary Director
Nitin Gupta Praveen Chand Dhandhania
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LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

1

)

b)

t}

d)

¢)

Company Overview

Lincoln Industries Limited ("the Company"} is a public company incorporated in India on 28th February,1983 having its
registered office at P 36, India Exchange Place, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700001. The company is listed on the Calcutta Stock
Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in the business of ginning, pressing and oil mill. The company has it's
operating plant located at Bhuna (Haryana) and Khajuwala (Rajasthan).

Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) (to the
extent notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
arevision to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Functional and presentation curreacy
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rs’) which is Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is also Indian Rupees (‘Rs’).

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except certain financial
assets and financial liabilities have been measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 0 accounting estimates are recognized

prospectively.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uacertainty: Key assumptions-

(i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an
asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case
of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

(ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

(iii) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards known
contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and other levies, if any, in
respect of which management believes that there are present obligations and the settiement of such obligations are expected
to result in outflow of resources. to the extent provided for.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values,

The management regularly reviews significant unobservabie inputs and valuation adjustments.

o




LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

a)

b

—

ii,

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level [ that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inpuis),

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the
inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.

Significant accounting policies

Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS | — Presentation of Financial Statements
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are aitributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Tradé receivables are
initially measured at transaction price. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

« Amortised cost ,

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

» Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is 10 hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The effective interest rate (EIR) amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTOQCI

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Other equity investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other
Comprehensive Income’.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial liabilities except financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair
value.

|\




LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
« Financia! liabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)

« Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities through FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and any gain or loss on derecognition are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximates fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when,
the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of those qualifying property, plant and equipment, which necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the Jower of their net book value and net realisable value
and shown under ‘Other current assets’.

A fixed asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at Lst April, 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of such property, plant and equipment. )

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associaled with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment are provided on written down value method over the useful lives of assets,
at the rates and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule I of the Act.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as appropriate.




LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a written down value basis over their estimated useful
lives. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Estimated useful life of the Computer Software is 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, finished goods, stock in trade, packing materials, stores and spares are measured
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value on the first-in first-out (FIFO) formula,. Cost includes
purchase price, duties, transport & handing costs and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition and bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down
below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value.

Assessment of net realisable value is made at each subsequent reporting date. When the circumstances that previously
caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net
realisable value because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed.

Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments: financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in
FVTPL category. ‘

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit
losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not
increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition, The Company's trade
receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an
amount equal to life time expected losses i.¢. expected cash shortfall.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows. are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs), Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Company estimatés the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs,

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards Provident Fund. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act
1972,

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

"



LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Revenue Recognition
Sales are measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Sales recognized is net of Goods and Service
tax, intermediary sales, rebates other indirect taxes and discount,

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liabilitv, Finance charges are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contactual terms of the financial instrument (for example,

navment. extension. call and similar antions) hut does nat consider the exnected credit losses,
Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in OCL
Current tax .

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Labilities in.the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have becn enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
neriod.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to- equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

e
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LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amount in ¥
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 3ist March 2020 31st March 2019
(long-term, other than trade, value at cost)
In Unquoted Equity Instruments
(fully paid up of face value of ¥10 each)
80,000 (P.Y, 80,0001) Shares of Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills & Ind Ltd. - 710,786
400,800 (P.Y. 400,800) Shares of Calvin Barter Private Limited 12,185,576 11,760,717
196,000 (P.Y. 196,000} Shares of Dhancot Fibres Private Limited 18,008,765 21,083,124
118,626 (P.Y. 118,626) Shares of P & P Highrise Private Limited 6,750,154 8,889,889
In Limited Liability Partnership:
Qriginal Commotrade LLP 785,160 1,427,660
Pragati Dealmark LLP 240,642 240,642
Investment in Government or Trust Securities (at amortised cost) 3,000 3,000
37,973,297 44,115,818
Note:
Original Commotrde LLP
Name of the Partners Share of Profit Total Capital
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 |I 31st March 2020  31st March 2019
Muku! Dhandhania 0.006% 0.006% 90 90
Premlata Dhandhania 0.001% 0.001% 10 10
Pravesh Dhandhamia 45.001% - 642,500 -
Lincoln Industries Limited 54.992% 99.993% 785,160 1,427,660
Pragati Dealmark LLP
Name of the Pariners Share of Profit Total Capital
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 || 31st March 2020| 31st March 2019
Melody Commercial LLP 471.31% 47.31% 3,000,000 3,000,000
Subhdata Dealers LLP 48.89% 48.89% 3,100,000 3,100,000
Lincoln Industries Limited 3.80% 3.80% 240,642 240,642
DEFFERED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (net) 31st March 2020 . 31st March 2019
Deferred Tax Assets :
Tax Impact arising on brought forward business loss, difference in fair 3,212,649 2,752,891
value of Investment and unabsorbed depreciation
Deferred tax liabilities
Tax Impact of difference in W.D.V. of fixed assets as per Income Tax 662,565 6,492,250
Act and Companies Act —
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) 2,550,084 (3,739,359)
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS st March 2020 31st March 2019
(Unsecured, considered good) '
Security Deposits 2,130,306 2,136,306
Other Advances 50,000 50,000
Income Tax Advances (net of provisions) 2,025,349 1,587,370
4,205,655 3,773,676
INVENTORIES 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stores and Spares 302,616 201,020
Packing Materials 201,903 315,008
504,521 516,028

w




LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares
Equity Shares:

{b) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the Company

TRADE RECEIVABLE 3ist March 2020 31st March 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Trade Receivable 3,796,280 781,713
3,796,280 781,713
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 201,718 189,177
Cash in Hand 406,354 269,301
T 608072 458,478
CURRENT LOANS 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(unsecured, considered good)
Loans to Related Parties 23,368,684 26,969,235
23,368,684 26!969,235
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Bank deposits (including interest accrued) 409,162 294,584
Recoverable from Bank 44,121 44,121
Current Capital Account with LLP 12,206,080 10,764,321
12,659,363 11,103,526
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Advance to Vendors - 4,000
Advance to employees 26,167 .
Balance with Goods and Service Tax Department 538,808 2,441,656
564,975 2,445,656
SHARE CAPITAL 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Authorised ;
60,00,000 (P.Y. 60,00,000) Equity Shares of T10/- each 60,000,000 60,000,000
60,000,000 60,000,000
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid-up :
52,45,000 (P.Y. 52,45,000) Equity Shares of T 10/- each 52,450,000 52,450,000
52,450,000 52,450,000
Total Share Capital 52,450,000 521450’000

Each equity share is entitled to dividend as proposed by the board of directors, Every share is having one vote. In case of winding
up, the share holder is entitled to distribution in equal proportion of balance remaining after payment to all creditors.

W

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Equity Shares of T 10 cach fully paid-up
Name of the Shareholders
Dhancot Fibres Private Limited 40.04% 2,100,000 40.04%
Ankit Dealers Private Limited 9.53% 500,000 9.53%
Drake Commercial Privaie Limited 6.67% 350,000 6.67%




LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES AND SURPLUS 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
General Reserve 6,093,605 6,093,605
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss :
Opening Balance 38,830,070 33,918,562
Add : Profit for the year (452,844) 4,911,508
Closing Balance 38,377,226 38,830,070
44,470,831 44,923,675
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITY 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Other Payable - 42,600
- 42,600
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Ssecured:
Working Capital Loan from Bank 1,168,810 5,233,238
1,168,810 5,233,238

(a) Working Capital Loan from State Bank of Iadia is secured by :

(i) Working Capital facility from bank is secured by hypothecation of all stocks of the Company and additionally secured by way
of hypothecation of the entire moveable machinery installed/to be installed in the factory. The said facilities are further
secured by equitable mortgage of property standing in the name of the Director and also by his personal guarantee.

) Ve

15 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITY J1st March 2020 31st March 2019
Statutory Liabilities 92,001.96 34,436.00
Payable to Employees 28,000.00 -

120.001.96 34.436.00

16 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITY 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Payable for Expenses 1,187,501 136,675
Other Payable 69 504,042

1,187,570 640,717




LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amount in T
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 2019-2020 2018-2019
Sale of Products
Finished Goods 148,541,634 229,069,471
Traded Goods - 22,059,636
Sale of Service
Ginning & Pressing Charges 7,380,422 -
155,922,056 231,129,107
OTHER INCOME 2019-2020 2018-2019
Interest Income 2,477,770 1,873,054
Profit on from Limited Liability Partnership Firm 1,479,317 5,617,029
Profit from Sale of Fixed Assets 4,960,328 -
Discount Received 204,591 -
Other Non-Operating Income 46,943 -
9,168,949 T 490,083
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 2019-2020 2018-2019
Inventory at the beginning of the year - 7,628,693
Add: Purchases during the year 144,856,764 205,803,773
144,856,764 213,432,466
Less : Inventory at the end of the year - -
144,856,764 213,432,466
PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE 2019-2020 2018-2019
Purchase of stock-in-trade - 19,858,093.00
- 19,858,093.00
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, 2019-2020 2018-2019
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Inventories at the beginning of the year :
Finished Goods - 5,181,216
Stock-in-Trade - 1,597,896
- 6,779,112
Inventories at the end of the year :
Finished Goods - -
Stock-in-Trade -
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories :
Finished Goods - 5,181,216
Stock-in-Trade 1,597,896
- 6,779,112
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 2019-2020 2018-2019
Salaries, Bonus & Other Allowances 6,021,750 5,661,148
Contribution to provident and other funds 13,050 49,500
Staff Welfare Expenses 60,000 107,650
6,094,800

Yo
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LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS 2019-2020 2018-201%
Interest Expense 330,488 880,840
330,488 TTTTRR0840
OTHER EXPENSES 2019-2020 2018-2019
Other Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores, Spares and Tools 469,877 1,225,376
Repairs to Machineries 158,194 232,816
628,071 1,458,192
Other Administrative and Selling Expenses
Advertisement 14,940 12,780
Bank Charges 198,885 113,507
Brokerage Paid 428,050 689,720
Quality Rebate & Discount allowed 725,820 1,106,523
Repairs & Maintenance

a) To Building 16,090 -
Loss on Sale of Investments 38,058 -
Legal & Professional Charges 262,638 379,658
Membership and Subcription Charges 32,750 31,250
Power and Fuel 3,605,239 4,382,302
Packing Materials Consumed 1,845,745 1,866,947
Printing and Stationery 47,749 44,800
Postage Expenses 35957 41,568
Auditors' remuneration:

Audit Fees 60,000 60,000
Insurance Charges 28,569 75,368
Filing Fees 12,000 -
Sundry Balannces written off - 236,592
Travelling & Conveyance 41,125 102,028
Telephone Charges 22,142 32,328
Rent, Rates & Taxes 4,103,722 740,525
Office Expenses 55,775 58,570
General Expenses 841,648 439,115

13,044,973 11,871,773
25 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 2019-2020 2018-2019

The calculation of Earnings Per Share (EPS) has been made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 33. A
statement on calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS is as under :

Net Profit After Tax 3,662,931 (836,686)
Add: Extra ordinary Expenses/Income - - .
Profit before consideration of Extraordinary items 3,662,931 (836,686)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 5,245,000 5,245,000
Basic Earnings Per Share [Face Value of Rs.10 each] 0.70 (0.16)

Add: Weighted number of potential equity shares on account
of Employees Stock Options

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 5.245.000 5.245.000
[inclusive dilutive ESOP shares outstanding] e i
Diluted Earnings Per Share [Face value of Re. 1 each] 0.70 (0.16)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 INCOME TAXES 2019-2020 2018-2019

A Amount recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax

Deferred tax for the year (4.905,198) (1,652,468)

B Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax
On items that will not be reciassified to profit or loss

- Fair valuation of equity instruments 1,384,245 3,484,268
1,384,245 3,484,268
Income tax expense reported in the Standalone Statement of Profit (3,520,953) 1.831.800
and Loss {a+b) T —
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2019-2020 2018-2019

(a) Defined contribution plans:

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year are as under:

Particulars

Employer's contribution to Provident Fund 13,050 49,500
Total

29 SEGMENT INFORMATION
As per Ind AS 108- “Operating Segment”, segment information has been provided under the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Please refer note 17 for revenue from sale of products.

30 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:
(i) List of related parties and also related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:
(a) Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Praveen Chand Dhandhania (Director)

M, Sushil Kumar Sureka (Director)

Mr. Rinku Dhandhania (Directar)

Mr. Sushovan Saharoy (Director)

Mr. Nitin Gupta (Company Secretary)

Mt. Shyam Sunder Bhageria (Chief Financial Officer)
(b) Other Related Parties

Dhancot Fibres Private Limited

Prem Chand Dhandhania (HUF)

P & P Highrise Private Limited

Original Cotnmotrade LLP

Pragati Dealmark LLP ‘ |
Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills & Inds. Ltd.



LINCOLN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(i) Disclosure of related party transactions:

Amount (% lakhs)

Nature of Transactions 2019-2020 2018-2019
Director's Remuneration

Praveen Chand Dhandhania 0.60 0.60
Salary Paid

Nitin Gupta 1.08 1.08

Shyam Sunder Bhageria 4.50 3.00
Rent e

Praveen Chand Dhandhania 0.60 < 0.60

P & P Highrise Private Limited 0.60 1.20

Prem Chand Dhandhania (HUF) 0.24 -
Interest Income

Original Commotrade LLP 4.10 -

Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills & Inds. Ltd. 17.15 -
Share of Profit from Limited Liability Partnership Firms

Original Commotrade LLP 36.41 55.90

Pragati Dealmark LLP (21.62) 0.27
Loans and Advances Given

Original Commotrade LLP 56.00 263.00

Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills & Inds, Ltd. 254.00 -
Receipt of Loan and Advances Given

Original Commotrade LLP 329.38

Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills & Inds. Lid. 35.75 -

(iii) Outstanding Balances

Loans and Advances Receivables

Original Commotrade LLP - 269.69

Sri Annapurna Cotton Mills & Inds. Ltd. 233.69 -
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Amount in ¥

31 Financial instruments and related disclosures

31.1 Falr value measurement

The fair values of the financial assets and liabitities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchange
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale,

The Company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categories the value into 3 levels, The inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value of financial instruments are:

Level 1: The hierarchy uses quoted (adjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The fair value of
all bonds which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price or dealer quotations as at the reporting
date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example traded bonds, over
the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and
rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The mutual fund units are valued using the closing net asset value.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3; If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observabie market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3,

The management assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalent, trade payable and other financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of there instruments.

31.2 Financial instruments by :
The following table shows fair values of financial assets and liabilities, including their levels in financial hierarchy,
together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position. The table does not include fair value
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying aamount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value,

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Particulars Note . Fair value . Fair value
Carrying amount Lovel 3 Carrying amount Level 3
A. Financial assets:
8) Measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 6 3,796,280 - 1,851,624 -
Cash and cash equivalents 7 608,072 . 458,478 -
Loans 8 23,368,684 26,969,235
Other financial assets 9 12,659,363 - 11,103,526 -
b) Meaured at fair value through
profit or loss ‘ ‘
Investments 2 1,025,802 1,025,802 1,668,302 1,668,302
¢} Meaured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Investments 2 36,944,495 36,944,495 42,444,516 42,444,516
B. Financial liabilities:
a) Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 14 1,168,810 - 5,233,238 : -
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Amount in ¥

31.3 Finpancial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
(i) Creditrisk

(i) Liquidity risk

(iii) Market risk

Risk management framewark

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of borrowings and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimise potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial
performance. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each
customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers. The Company’s risk management assessment and
policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and
processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss of the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally form the Company receivables from customers. Credit arises when
a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from
its financing/investing activities, including deposits with bank. The Company has no significant concentration of credit
risk with any counterparty, The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Trade receivable. .

The risk management committee has established a'credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually
for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Company's review includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry
information'and in some cases bank references.

Exposure to credit risks

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, However
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk
associated with the industry. Details of concentration percentage of revenue generated from top customer and top five
custormners are stated below :

Particulars Year ended Year ended

%o Amount % Amount
Revenue from top customer 14.58% 22,730,818 20.22% 50,781,064
Revenue from top five 42.23% 65,840,403 55.27% 138,807,610

Trade receivables are primarily unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers. Credit risk is managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and by continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of busitiess. As per simplified approach, the Company makes
provision of expected credit lossed on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default payments
amd makes appropriate provisions at each reporting date whenever is for longer period and involves higher risk.

-
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Amount in T

(i)

(i)

(a)

Liquidity rish

Liquidity risa s z=7rez zs the risk that the Company will not be abie to seitle or meet its obligations on time or at
reasonab,e o2 P-.iert Lgoidin risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availabilin 17 -2z mroogh an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's
:2 tor liquidity, funding as well as setllement management, In addition, Processes and policies
~sa3 2me overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through
-~ 1=z Pasis of exnected cash flows.

finance 1ze= 3 T
related o s
rolling 7

QST

Imoas 3 aopreach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet
E ~z2zn thes are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risa.nz cxmzo2 w0 the Company's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk
=g 1zh2 heyow provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities and investments at
the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars Less than 1 vear 1-5 years > S vears Total

As at 31 March 2020 ‘

Borrowings 1,168,810 - - 1,168,810
1,168,810 - - 1,168,810

As at 31 March 2019

Borrowings 5,233,238 - - 5,233,238
5,233,238 - - 5233,238

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss.of future carnings, fair value or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price
of a financial instrument . The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates and
other market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive
financial instruments including investments, receivables, payables and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market intcrest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates related primarily to
the Company's short term borrowing with floating interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and

rebalances its financing strategies to achicve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company 's interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 12,659,363 11,103,526

Financial liabilities ‘ - .
12,659,363 11,103,526

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets - -

Financial liabilities {1,168.810) (5,233,238)
(1,168,810) (5,233,238)

Sensitivity analysis
Fixed rate instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not subject 1o interest rate risk for the purpose of sensitive
analysis.

v_/
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Amount in ¥

{b)

(©)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instrumer
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in variable rate instruments at the reporting dates would have increased
or decreased profit or loss by the amounts shown below.

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 March 2020

Variable rate instruments (11,688) 11,688 (8,746) 8,746
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (11,688) 11,688 (8,746) 8,746
31 March 2019

Variable rate instruments (52,332) 52,332 (38,726) 38,726
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (52,332) 52,332 (38,726) 38,726

Equity price risk

The Company is not exposed to equity risks arising from equity investments. Equity investments are held for strategic
rather than trading purposes. The Company does not actively trade these investments.

Currency risk

The Company does not have currency risks since it is not exposed to any foreign currency transaction.

32 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company's management objective are :

The Company monitors capital on the basis of carrying amount of equity including retained earnings as presented on the
face of Balance Sheet. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. There is no change in the overall capital risk
management strategy as compared to the last vear.

Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

Total debt (Bank and other borrowings) A 1,168,810 5,233,238

Equity B 96,920,831 91,373,675

Liquid investments including bank deposits C 608,072 458,478

Debt to Equity (A / B) 0.01 0.05

Debt to Equity (net) [{A-C) / B} 0.01 0.05

33 MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
Based on the informations available with the Company, the Company does not owe any sum o Micro and Small
Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

35 CONTINGENT LIABLITIES 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Income Tax Liability against which the Company has 6,135,250 6,135,250
preferred appeal

36 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Corporate Social Responsibility as mentioned in Schedule VI read with Section 135 of the Co Act 2013 is not applicable

to the company.
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37 COVID-19 pandemic has been rapidly spreading throughout the world, including India. Government in india has taken
significant measures to curb the spread of the virus including imposing mandatory lockdowns and restrictions in
activities. Consequently, Company's offices had to be closed down for a considerable period of time, including after the
year end. The Company is monitoring the situation closely taking into account directives frem the Governments. _
Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impacts of known events arising from COVID-19 :
pandemic and the resultant fockdowns ini the preparation of the financial statements including but not limited to its

assessment of Company’s liquidity and going concern, recoverable values of its long and short term advances and the net

realisable values of other assets. In developing the assumptions refating to the possible future uncertainties in the

economic conditions because of the pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has

used both internal and external sources of information. However, given the effect of these lockdowns on the overall

economic activity and in particular on this industry, the impact assessment of COVID-19 on this financial statement is

subject to significant estimation uncertainties given its nature and duration. Accordingly, the actual impacts in future may

be different from those estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements, The Company will continue to

monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and consequential impact on its financial position.

38 PREVIQUS YEAR FIGURES
The figures for the previous years have been regrouped and/or reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable.

39 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31st July, 2020.
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